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As a part of its overall adver-
tising and promotional
efforts, Daikyo produced a
new TV commercial incor-
porating the newly adopt-
ed brand tagline “Family
First” and a fresh logo fash-
ioned on its long-standing
Lions Mansion mark.

Daikyo has renewed its
Web site to reflect the
adoption of the new
“Family First” brand
tagline and strategy.

First launched in 1968, the Daikyo Group has posi-
tioned “Quality,” “Comfort” and “Family” at the
heart of its LIONS MANSION brand. Among these
key principles, our commitment to the family unit is
of particular importance. 

Going forward, the Daikyo Group will continue
to make every effort to provide products and serv-
ices that best fulfill the needs of each era, enhanc-
ing family life, happiness and wellbeing under the
concept of “Family First.” 
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PROFILE

Leveraging the collective strengths of the Group, Daikyo strives to create

a “harmonious living environment” through housing products and

services that satisfy the needs of all age groups and lifestyles.
Group Management Philosophy

Recognized by the Lions Mansion brand, the Daikyo Group is engaged in a variety of activities including

condominium development and sales, condominium management, real estate brokerage and tenant services.

Working to deliver products and services that best fit every possible lifestyle across each generation, we have

sold over 300,000 units nationwide, providing homes to more than 1,000,000 people.

Guided by the basic policies of group-wide management, profitability, compliance and communication,

Daikyo strives to maximize corporate value while simultaneously providing the best possible living spaces and

environments. Working to deliver products and services that imbue our Family First posture, we are unified in

our commitment to creating a “harmonious living environment” and to contributing to the wellbeing of the

customers and communities that we serve.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. dollars

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2006

For the Year:

Net sales ¥ 342,483 ¥ 336,681 ¥340,584 ¥ 450,652 ¥434,303 $3,697,138

Operating income (loss) 20,456 18,968 18,058 (20,480) 30,238 257,409

Income (loss) before income taxes and minority interest (380,899) 386,404 7,239 (101,247) 27,156 231,173

Net income (loss) (386,799) 386,497 6,640 (101,617) 31,900 271,557

Net income (loss) per share (yen and U.S. dollars) ¥(2,087.37) ¥2,091.96 ¥ 29.45 ¥ (543.43) ¥ 97.61 $ 0.83

At Year-End:

Total assets ¥ 911,996 762,412 ¥750,060 ¥ 430,073 ¥400,886 $3,412,671

Total shareholders’ equity (383,355) 81,677 94,176 53,723 91,081 775,354

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This annual report includes translations of documents originally filed under the Securities and Exchange Law of Japan. This report was prepared in English
solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan and should not be considered as a disclosure statement. The original Japanese documents shall take
precedence in the event of any discrepancies arising from the translations or interpretations contained in this report.

Estimates for Daikyo Incorporated’s future operating results contained in this annual report are forward-looking statements and are based on infor-
mation currently available to the Company and are subject to risks and uncertainties. Consequently, these projections should not be relied upon as the sole
basis for evaluating Daikyo Incorporated. Actual results may differ substantially from the projections depending on a number of factors.
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AN INTERVIEW WITH THE PRESIDENT

Dear Fellow Shareholders,
Working toward a new phase of growth, the
Daikyo Group strives to deliver added value
through its brand strategy and enhance 
collaboration throughout the Group 
as the means to secure a robust 
management platform and 
high earnings structure.

Representative Executive Officer,
President and Group Chief Executive Officer

Masaaki Tashiro



— 4 — 

Q.1

Q.2

What are your thoughts after a full
year as President?

First and foremost, I am confident that with a unified commitment to tackle and resolve challenges, the Daikyo Group
will become even stronger and more purposeful. To this end, we have continued to foster increased awareness of our
efforts to establish a platform that generates continuous earnings. At the same time, we have endeavored to promote
close communications as the basis for reinforcing compliance and group-wide management. In specific terms, we introduced
initiatives to reduce the duration of each project development from the acquisition of land through property sale. Measures
to cutback inventories of completed condominiums were particularly successful and contributed to earnings growth. As
a result, while net sales in fiscal 2006 (ended March 31, 2006) declined to ¥434.3 billion, condominium development and
sale’s gross profit margin improved. For the fiscal year under review, operating income reached ¥30.2 billion, income
before income taxes and minority interest rose to ¥27.2 billion and net income surged to ¥31.9 billion, against losses in
each respective category in fiscal 2005.

Against the backdrop of improved earnings, the Daikyo Group’s operating environment gives rise to concern.
Despite the robust supply and continued steady sale of condominiums, general market conditions are characterized
by increases in the price of development sites and expectations of rising interest rates. Under these circumstances,
I aim to further promote group-wide management and to strengthen profitability as the means to expeditiously achieve
the goals of our Business Revitalization Plan.

Daikyo has formulated a new Group
management philosophy. 
What direction is the Group targeting?

Put simply, the Group’s management recognized the urgent need to clarify the standards
and parameters required to unify the overall Group as it worked toward a new phase of
growth. In anticipation of harsh operating conditions, I believe the Daikyo Group must maximize
its competitive advantage if we are to successfully enhance our overall corporate value.

In general terms, the Daikyo Group’s new management philosophy is founded on three
core objectives: (1) to reconfirm our raison d’etre of creating a rich and meaningful harmonious
living environment by utilizing the collective strengths of the Group; (2) to promote a management
stance that emphasizes maximum returns to each and every stakeholder; and (3) to establish a
code of behavior for all employees as the means to achieve the aforementioned objectives.
In order to build a platform capable of generating high earnings and to realize improvements
in our corporate value, we recognize the importance of identifying a sole common direction
based on shared values held by every member of the Daikyo Group.
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Q.3

What are your objectives in including 
Daikyo Kanri and Daikyo Jutaku Ryutsu 
as wholly owned subsidiaries in the 
Group’s scope of consolidation?

The Daikyo Group is engaged in double-pillar management, its flow
business comprising condominium development and sales, and its
stock businesses including condominium management and real estate
brokerage. As a complete package, the condominiums sold under the
flow business are managed and maintained by Daikyo Kanri, while
Daikyo Jutaku Ryutsu handles used condominiums in its role as sales
agent. By incorporating each function under a single group structure,
we are leveraging individual skills to mutual advantage to enhance
condominium management efficiency and increase the asset value
of used housing. The Daikyo Group has established relationships with
over 300,000 households, and in maximizing this significant Group
strength, we are confident in our ability to secure a variety of new
business opportunities. In the past, Daikyo, Daikyo Kanri and Daikyo
Jutaku Ryutsu have maintained close collaboration. In reinforcing
this collaboration through equity arrangements, we hope to further
bolster close ties and to secure increased Group profit.

In particular, we are targeting profitability improvements in our
condominium management operations. Daikyo will also expand its
network in the brokerage business and proactively allocate human
resources.



— 6 — 

Why did you feel the necessity to
announce a new brand strategy?

We felt that a strong brand image would be essential to fulfilling the Group’s potential. Before any
thought of promoting a new brand strategy, however, we first undertook surveys to gauge the level of
awareness and the perception and understanding of our Lions Mansion brand in the market. While
brand awareness was extremely high, survey results clearly indicated that our brand image differed
significantly among customers and areas. Furthermore, the awareness of a Daikyo Group that provides
comprehensive services from development and sale through management and brokerage was relatively
low. From this, we determined that a stronger brand image was imperative to the Group’s medium- and
long-term growth.

Q.4

Accordingly, we established an in-house project team and elicited contributions from Group
branches and companies. Our goals were to clearly determine what structure the Daikyo Group
should adopt, what image it should project and what steps were required to further enhance corporate
and brand value.

After comprehensive and vigorous discussion, we determined that in order to establish a dynamic
and powerful brand image, it was imperative that we deliver proprietary value-added products and
services that customers find appealing.

Based on these discussions, we established the basic criteria and distinguishing features for our
new brand strategy comprising “value,” “convenience,” “safety and reliability,” “custom-made,”
“comfort,” “consistency” and “innovation.” These key characteristics are essential to our commitment
to customers.

To date, we have focused on quality and comfort as the core features of our condominium brand.
To these features, we have newly transposed the overall credo and brand tagline of Family First, further
emphasizing the source of the Group’s motivation and the basis for its business activities. At the same
time, we have refashioned the Lions Mansion logo.

Based on our aforementioned brand value criteria and a customer-centric approach, the Daikyo
Group is committed to improving customer contact and service at every level of its operations.
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What is Daikyo’s image of its target customer base,
and what are your thoughts on the condominium
development and sale market going forward?

For the Daikyo Group, our customer base revolves around the family unit. Each
family is considered as unique, enjoying a rich and full lifestyle, with sophisticated
tastes, diverse hobbies and a wide circle of friends and acquaintances. The family
unit is a complex construction, comprised of such arrangements as extended
families, couples, pet owners and singles with frequent contact with other family
members and friends. The family unit continues to evolve with each era, placing
new and diverse demands on the construction and contents of housing. Based on
this formulation of our target customer base, we strongly believe that delivering
products and services that focus first and foremost on the happiness and wellbeing
of families is the key ingredient in securing our future competitive advantage.

In closing, what would you like to tell 
fellow shareholders?

The fiscal year under review was a year of “action”: we put in place the platform required to move
ahead. Going forward, we will increase profitability, accelerate efforts to achieve in advance the goals
of the Business Revitalization Plan, and bolster the Group’s management platform as a springboard for
a significant leap forward. As a unified group, Daikyo is committed to fully satisfying the needs of its
shareholders. I would like to thank each and every shareholder for their support and understanding.

Q.5

Q.6
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Toward Strengthening 
Group Management

As specialists in their respective fields, Daikyo,
Daikyo Kanri and Daikyo Jutaku Ryutsu contin-
ue to provide services of the highest quality.
Historically, while operating as autonomous
units, each company strove to establish a sta-
ble support structure underpinned by a solid
Group network. In December 2005, however,
Daikyo Kanri and Daikyo Jutaku Ryutsu were
converted into wholly owned subsidiaries
through an exchange of shares. In cementing
the Group’s structure on an equity basis, Daikyo
is endeavoring not only to share information and
know-how throughout the Group, but also to fur-
ther deliver detailed and sophisticated products
and services tailored to each lifestyle and cir-
cumstance while enhancing customers’ asset
values over the long term.

In addition, the Daikyo Group undertook
steps to adopt an integrated strategic business
promotion structure in April 2006. In order to
increase efficiencies in the decision-making
process, Daikyo consolidated the administrative
function and introduced a geographic-block
system to better promote customer-centric
marketing and business operations. Based on
this organizational reform, Daikyo is endeavoring
to further promote consolidated Group man-
agement.

The Daikyo Group

Daikyo Kanri

Daikyo

Daikyo
Jutaku Ryutsu

  Condominium
management

Condominium
development 

and sales

Real 
estate

brokerage

Leasing
management

Construction 
planning and 

quality
management

Product
planning

Urban
development

Repairs
and 

maintenance
Condominium

remodeling
Tenant
services

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
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Ensuring Optimal Support Services Tailored to Individual Customer Lifestyles
Engaging in a wide range of condominium brokerage activities, Daikyo Jutaku Ryutsu serves as an advisor to its customers,

helping families to achieve an optimal life plan.

Business activities are conducted through a network of directly owned agents. In an effort to foster closer ties with local commu-

nities, Daikyo Jutaku Ryutsu is accelerating measures to open new agents. As of March 31, 2006, Daikyo Jutaku Ryutsu maintained 21

agents in the Tokyo Metropolitan area, up from 17 agents as of the previous fiscal year-end; two agents in the Kinki region, an increase

of one agent;  and six agents in other regions, up from two agents year on year, for a nationwide total of 29 agents. Looking ahead, Daikyo

Jutaku Ryutsu plans to increase the number of agents to 40 by March 31, 2007, focusing primarily on the Tokyo Metropolitan area.

Well versed in the condominium sales agency business, Daikyo Jutaku Ryutsu’s services are backed by the Group’s experience of

supplying over 300,000 condominiums. Accordingly, Daikyo Jutaku Ryutsu has a significant track record in condominium sales, pur-

chase and repurchase. Leveraging its strengths and skills across a broad range of activities, Daikyo Jutaku Ryutsu also provides support

to those seeking to lease their properties as well as those seeking rental accommodation.

Daikyo Jutaku Ryutsu is committed to realizing breakthroughs in the real estate brokerage market in its dual role as adviser

and partner to its customers.

Providing a Secure and Comfortable Living Environment through Genuine and Professional Support
Daikyo Kanri is Japan’s leading condominium management company, managing 310,000 condominiums on behalf of approximately

6,000 associations nationwide. Leveraging a wealth of accumulated experience, know-how and an extensive track record, Daikyo

Kanri is engaged in broad-based consulting services. In an effort to maintain and increase asset values from a long-term perspective,

Daikyo Kanri provides a total support package from repairs and maintenance planning through financial planning, construction and

after-care services in its large-scale repairs and maintenance business. In acquiring ISO 9001:2000 accreditation, the international

standard for quality management, Daikyo Kanri has elevated its credentials in condominium management and large-scale repairs and

maintenance.

From a Group perspective, Daikyo Kanri channels tenant information back through the Lions Mansion Product and Product Planning

Department to ensure improved quality and comfort in the condominiums of the future.

Condominium Management

Real Estate Brokerage
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CREATING A “HARMONIOUS LIVING ENVIRONMENT”

Environmental Symbiosis
LIONS TOWER TSUKISHIMA, a 32-story,
291-condominium complex completed in
November 2005, was  Japan’s first high-
rise residential tower to be accredited as an
environmentally symbiotic housing project.
In addition to the rooftop garden and exten-
sive greenery, LIONS TOWER TSUKISHI-
MA is an environmentally conscious
complex with features unique to the area.
Incorporating Ukishima Square, a commu-
nity zone created for local residents, and
objet d’art typical of the area, this condo-
minium complex encapsulates the history
of Tsukuda and its surroundings.

LIONS HAMADAYAMA CENT MARKS,
a 13-story, 212-condominium complex was
completed in February 2006. Incorporating
the concerns of local residents, great efforts
were made during the project to preserve
the original greenery including cheery blos-
som and maidenhair trees. Furthermore,
as a part of the environmentally conscious
initiatives of the residents and manage-
ment, all parking facilities were located
underground and an open courtyard of
approximately 2,200 square meters was
constructed. With a focus on “hospitality,”
LIONS HAMADAYAMA CENT MARKS
boasts a unique butler system offering
24-hour staff support and a comprehensive
range of genuine and professional services.

Joint Projects and Proposals 
(All-Electric Housing)
In its efforts to create optimal living envi-
ronments, Daikyo maintains collabo-
rative arrangements with leading
companies across a variety of fields. LIONS
TOWER SENDAI OTEMACHI, a 26-story, 180-
condominium complex scheduled for
completion in June 2006, is a joint-venture
project comprising Daikyo, Tohoku Electric
Power Co., Inc. and NTT DoCoMo Tohoku, Inc.

The Comfort and Lifestyle of
Condominiums 

Constructed to hybrid seismic isolation
specifications, this high-rise tower also
boasts universal FOMA reception as well
as all-electric system facilities. From the
perspectives of safety, comfort and con-
venience, LIONS TOWER SENDAI
OTEMACHI delivers significant competi-
tive advantage. 

Currently under proposal, plans are in
place to construct Be ALL OSAKA OTEMAE
TOWER, a 40-story, 307-condominium proj-
ect scheduled for completion in February

2007. A joint-venture with Kanden Fudosan
Co., Ltd., this complex will incorporate
all-electric system facilities utilizing the
technical expertise of The Kansai Electric
Power Co., Inc. With Be ALL OSAKA
OTEMAE TOWER, Daikyo will strive to deliv-
er the essence of mobile living. Focusing on
demands for a safe, reliable and clean
lifestyle, the complex will offer a variety of
added features including mobile phone and
Internet reception, home security and mail-
delivery lockers.

LIONS TOWER TSUKISHIMA
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Bringing State-of-the-Art
Technology to the Home

Security
Mirroring increased concern within the
community, security has become a factor
in the selection of condominiums. With
this in mind, Daikyo makes every effort to
develop products that naturally combine
aspects of comfort and security.

LIONS MANSION TANASHI EAST
RESIDENCE, a five-story, 68-condominium
complex scheduled for completion in April
2006, is the first in the Lions Mansion port-
folio to set infrared security sensors for
first floor condominium terraces and exclu-
sive garden areas.

In addition, LIONS TOWER UENO-
KUROMONCHO, a 20-story, 121-condo-
minium complex completed in March
2006, offers individual condominium secu-
rity and disaster prevention facilities as
well as an IT home system. This continu-
ously connected Internet environment
enables home security information trans-
fer and operating control of home air con-
ditioning and lights via mobile phones.
Through these means, Daikyo is enhanc-
ing personal control over home security
matters as well as increased convenience.

GRANDFORT SENZOKUIKE, an eight-
story, 51-condominium complex com-
pleted in September 2005, boasts the
mobile control system. This  system com-
bines network control of a variety of home
appliances with an enhanced security
function. Each condominium is equipped
with a 24-hour security sensor and fire
alarm. In the event of detection, a signal
is transmitted to an on-site electronic
administration board and automatically
transferred to the Control Center. On
receipt of a signal, appropriate personnel
are dispatched from the nearest possible
location.

In advancing planning proposals that
match the needs of each era, Daikyo
strives to deliver a safe, secure and com-
fortable living environment to its cus-
tomers.

LIONS TOWER UENO-KUROMONCHO

LIONS TOWER UENO-KUROMONCHO
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance Structure

Daikyo’s Board of Directors is responsible for making decisions on

important management issues. At the same time, the Board over-

sees the activities of its executive officers and is supported by the

Nominating Committee, Audit Committee and Compensation

Committee, each chaired by an outside director. In addition to the

aforementioned supervisory and audit functions, Daikyo has adopt-

ed a system of Group Management Meetings to ensure that mat-

ters relating to management execution are appropriately discussed,

deliberated and determined. As of June 28, 2006, Daikyo main-

tained 11 directors, four of whom were appointments from out-

side the Group, and eight executive officers including the

Representative Executive Officer. With the aim of enhancing the

relevance and efficacy of the Board of Directors from an audit func-

tion perspective, five members of the 11-member Board hold con-

current positions as executive officers. 

Turning to the Company’s outside directors, Yoshihiko Miyauchi

is the Director and Representative Executive Officer of ORIX

Corporation, a company with which Daikyo maintains a capital

alliance. Takayasu Okushima is an academic and holds director-

ships and an auditor position. Teruo Ozaki is a certified public

accountant, outside director of ORIX Corporation, and outside direc-

tor and corporate auditor of a number of other companies. Akira

Miyahara is a former representative director of Fuji Xerox Co., Ltd.,

and also holds directorships with other companies. The Company

has executed limited liability agreements with these four outside

directors.

Following the shift to the Company with Committees sys-

tem, Daikyo implemented regular meetings for its various

boards and committees. Under this system, during the fiscal

year under review, the Board of Directors met seven times ,

the Nominating Committee three times, the Audit Committee

five times and the Compensation Committee four times. In

principle, Group Management Meetings are held twice each

month. In addition, Business Review Meetings attended by

executive and other officers are held in principle once a week

to deliberate and determine important proposals relating to the

Group’s condominium development and sales business.

Status of the Audit Committee, Internal Audit and

Accounting Audit

Daikyo has also reinforced the Group’s audit function as one means

to bolster corporate governance. Comprised of three outside direc-

tors, the Audit Committee evaluates the activities of executive offi-

cers, the Company and internal controls based on the following

reports:

- A review of the business and affairs of the Company pre-

sented by the Representative Executive Officer, President

and Group Chief Executive Officer

- Results of internal audits and reports relating to the over-

all internal control presented by the director in charge of

the Group Audit Department

- The accounting audit report presented by the independent

auditor

From an audit perspective, the Audit Committee maintains

close communication with the independent auditor and the Group

Audit Department through the presentation and receipt of audit

reports, in collective efforts to ensure optimal efficacy in the audit

function.

Historically, the Daikyo Group has contracted with ChuoAoyama

PricewaterhouseCoopers in connection with its accounting audit

needs. In conjunction with the expiry of the agreement and approval

at the Group’s Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders on June

28, 2006, Daikyo newly appointed KPMG AZSA & Co.  as its inde-

pendent auditor.

Compliance and Internal Control System

In conjunction with its shift to the Company with Committees sys-

tem, at a Board of Directors meeting held in June 2005, Daikyo

decided to adopt matters prescribed by the ordinance of the Ministry

In an effort to further improve soundness, transparency and efficiency in corporate management,

the Daikyo Group continuously strives to optimize corporate governance. As a part of these efforts,

the Company shifted to a “Company with Committees” system following approval at its Ordinary

General Meeting of Shareholders in June 2005. Under the Company with Committees system,

supervisory functions are separated from executive functions in order to reinforce the system of

checks and balances and to accelerate the decision-making process. In addition, Daikyo established

a compliance framework in an effort to improve risk management.
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of Justice concerning necessary matters for execution of  duties of

an audit committee as the basis for establishing an internal control

system. Following implementation of the New Corporation Law,

however, and completion of a comprehensive review, Daikyo decid-

ed to reinforce its compliance, audit and risk management systems

as the underlying pillars of its internal control system at respective

Board of Directors’ meetings held in March and May 2006.

From a compliance perspective, Daikyo established the spe-

cialist Group Audit Department to monitor internal control activi-

ties and the specialist Group Compliance Department to pursue

and promote compliance, with the aim of ensuring the relevance

and accuracy of the executive function. In addition, Daikyo created

the Group Compliance Consultation System for the benefit of

all Group employees to better identify, evaluate, address and

improve countermeasures in the event of illegal activity, a breach

of the Group’s internal rules and regulations, or activities that con-

travene accepted social codes of behavior. Furthermore, Daikyo

periodically conducts compliance education and training for Group

directors, officers and employees.

In accordance with its risk management guidelines and in the

Corporate Governance Flow Chart           

Executive Officers Group Management Meeting 

Business Review Meeting Group CEO
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CFO

Other executive officers
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Group Accounting Dept.
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Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders

context of its operating activities, the Daikyo Group identifies, eval-

uates and manages risk across a variety of categories including real

estate market risk, business risks and disaster risk. The Group

Compliance Department coordinates risk management methods

based on monitoring activities as well as feedback and reports from

each department. In addition, the Group Compliance Department

regularly reports to the Representative Executive Officer, President

and Group CEO and the Audit Committee with proposals to improve

the Group’s risk management systems.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The Daikyo Group formulated its management philosophy to clar-

ify its posture toward customers, society, employees, business

partners and shareholders. In addition, the Group established guide-

lines for the public announcement of information to ensure more

timely, relevant and accurate disclosure. Working to further enhance

information disclosure and particularly important information that

would impact the decisions of investors, Daikyo established the

Investor Relations Department in July 2005.
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CONSOLIDATED TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
For the years ended March 31, 1997—2006

1997 1998 1999 2000

FOR THE YEAR:

Net sales ¥ 552,970 ¥ 533,722 ¥ 456,142 ¥ 389,569

Cost of sales 468,044 473,746 396,038 324,649

Gross profit 84,926 59,976 60,104 64,920

Selling, general and administrative expenses 48,331 45,892 34,058 39,454

Operating income (loss) 36,595 14,084 26,046 25,466

Income (loss) before income taxes and minority interest 3,511 (114,148) 3,775 (3,604)

Income taxes 2,064 727 755 (3,851)

Net income (loss) (937) (126,753) 3,032 104

Net income (loss) per share (yen and U.S. dollars) ¥ (5.06) ¥ (684.00) ¥ 16.36 ¥ 0.56

Weighted-average number of shares (thousands) 185,314 185,314 185,314 185,314

AT YEAR-END:

Property and equipment, less accumulated depreciation ¥ 354,256 ¥ 344,326 ¥ 392,192 ¥ 563,918

Total assets 1,497,205 1,244,842 1,236,520 1,311,563

Total shareholders’ equity 129,122 1,883 26,954 15,548

Notes: 1. Per share data are based on the weighted average number of shares.
2. All dollar figures herein refer to U.S. currency. Dollar amounts are translated from yen, for convenience only, at ¥117.47=US$1.00, the approximate exchange rate prevailing on

March 31, 2006.

*Except for per share amounts
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Thousands of
Millions of yen* U.S. dollars*

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2006

¥ 392,617 ¥ 342,483 ¥ 336,681 ¥340,584 ¥ 450,652 ¥434,303 $ 3,697,138

325,401 282,830 282,270 290,825 430,184 363,846 3,097,352

67,216 59,653 54,411 49,759 20,468 70,457 599,786

41,189 39,197 35,443 31,701 40,948 40,219 342,377

26,027 20,456 18,968 18,058 (20,480) 30,238 257,409

3,486 (380,899) 386,404 7,239 (101,247) 27,156 231,173

(3,015) 7,297 (128) 335 1,140 (6,560) (55,846)

6,234 (386,799) 386,497 6,640 (101,617) 31,900 271,557

¥ 33.64 ¥(2,087.37) ¥ 2,091.96 ¥ 29.45 ¥ (543.43) ¥ 97.61 $ 0.83

185,314 185,304 184,754 184,714 186,991 320,581

¥ 605,771 ¥ 358,095 ¥ 251,000 ¥252,840 ¥ 36,142 ¥ 21,719 $ 184,891

1,279,409 911,996 762,412 750,060 430,073 400,886 3,412,671

5,321 (383,355) 81,677 94,176 53,723 91,081 775,354
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

NET SALES

OVERVIEW

The Daikyo Group is making every effort to achieve the targets of

its Business Revitalization Plan, a business roadmap effective

through March 2008 formulated in September 2004.

Under the Plan, Daikyo positioned its mainstay condominium

development and sales activit ies as well as condominium

management, real estate brokerage and the tenant services as its

core businesses. The goal is to transform condominium development

and  sa les ,  as  a  f l ow bus iness ,  to  a  h igh - tu rnove r  and

capital-efficient business model while simultaneously increasing

the competitiveness and earning power of the stock businesses

of condominium management, real estate brokerage and tenant

services. In this manner, the Group is shifting from a single

flow-oriented business to flow- and stock-oriented double-pillar

management.

As a part of this transformation toward double-pillar manage-

ment, Daikyo Kanri Inc. and Daikyo Jyutaku Ryutsu Inc., two

companies at the center of the Group’s stock business, were

converted into wholly owned subsidiaries on December 29, 2005.

Through this means, the Group has strengthened collaboration

among businesses and is endeavoring to expand its earning

platform and secure overall Group profitability.

In fiscal 2006, ended March 31, 2006, the Japanese economy

continued its path toward a full-fledged recovery buoyed by

improved corporate earnings, increased capital expenditure as well

as growth in employment and disposable income that contributed

to a moderate upswing in consumer consumption. In the real estate

market, the Group’s principal field of operations, the supply of con-

dominiums continued at a high level with firm sales maintained

across the board. These positive conditions were tempered,

however, by an increase in the price of commercial-use land due

to robust demand for condominiums in major urban areas and

concerns surrounding rising interest rates.

Under these circumstances, consolidated net sales declined

3.6% compared with the previous fiscal year to ¥434.3 billion

($3,697.1 million), reflecting the downturn in the Group’s main-

stay condominium development and sales business.

RESULTS BY SEGMENT

Daikyo has traditionally classified each business segment on

the basis of sales, asset scale and degree of importance. Under

the Business Revitalization Plan, however, the Company has

endeavored to raise the competitiveness of its core stock busi-

nesses comprising real estate management and real estate

brokerage  and to combine each with the real estate sales flow

business to better promote a double-pillar management struc-

ture. Accordingly, from the fiscal year under review, Daikyo has

separated the real estate management, real estate brokerage and

contract work businesses, previously reported under the other

segment to better clarify operating activities and included real

estate leasing in the other segment due to its reduced importance.

REAL ESTATE SALES

Sales in this segment declined 12.8% compared with the previous

fiscal year to ¥363.4 billion ($3,093.5 million) due to the Company’s

focus on increasing earning power and profitability.

REAL ESTATE MANAGEMENT

In the fiscal year under review, sales in the real estate manage-

ment segment surged 540.9% to ¥26.5 billion ($225.4 million).

This is attributed to the inclusion of Daikyo Kanri Inc. in the

Company’s scope of consolidation from the previous fiscal year-

end and the steady increase in the number of condominiums under

management.

REAL ESTATE BROKERAGE

Sales in this segment declined 6.4% year on year to ¥7.9 billion

($67.2 million). In the fiscal year under review, Daikyo Jyutaku

Ryutsu Inc. opened five new agents in an effort to reinforce

the marketing process. As a result, sales from the brokerage of

used condominiums climbed ¥1.8 billion compared with the pre-

vious fiscal year to ¥5.8 billion. Sales agency revenues from new-

ly constructed condominiums, however, declined ¥2.4 billion year

on year to ¥2.1 billion, reflecting the drop in the number of sales

agency properties.

CONTRACT WORK

Contract work sales jumped 199.3% to ¥32.1 billion ($273.4 mil-

lion). This was attributed to the inclusion of Daikyo Kanri Inc. in

the Company’s scope of consolidation at the end of the previous

fiscal year as well as the healthy increase in contracts.

OTHER

Sales from the other segment decreased 29.6% to ¥13.2 billion

($112.7 million). This was primarily due to the significant drop in

leasing sales year on year.
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OUTLINE OF OPERATION BY SEGMENT

Millions of yen

Net Sales Operating Income

Fiscal 2005 Fiscal 2006 Increase (Decrease) Fiscal 2005 Fiscal 2006 Increase (Decrease)

Real estate sales ¥416,837 ¥363,398 ¥(53,439) ¥ (23,092) ¥26,993 ¥50,085

Real estate management 4,131 26,480 22,349 483 1,808 1,325

Real estate brokerage 8,431 7,889 (542) 1,242 1,227 (15)

Contract work 10,730 32,116 21,386 763 1,190 427

Other 18,803 13,241 (5,562) 3,071 1,326 (1,745)

Eliminations or corporate assets/expenses (8,280) (8,821) (541) (2,947) (2,306) 641

Total ¥450,652 ¥434,303 ¥(16,349) ¥ (20,480) ¥30,238 ¥50,718

PROFIT

OPERATING INCOME

In the fiscal year under review, Daikyo reported consolidated oper-

ating income of ¥30.2 billion ($257.4 million) against an operating

loss incurred in the previous fiscal year of ¥20.5 billion. The prin-

cipal factor in achieving this turnaround was the Group’s efforts

to bolster earnings capacity in its mainstay condominium

development and sales activities—a critical issue. As a result, the

gross profit margin for condominium development and sales

climbed 3.5 percentage points year on year to 17.2%.

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES AND MINORITY INTEREST

From a loss of ¥101.2 billion in the previous fiscal year, Daikyo

reported consolidated income before income taxes and minority

interest totaling ¥27.2 billion ($231.2 million) in the fiscal year under

review. This was in part attributed to an extraordinary gain of ¥3.4

billion from the sales of investment securities and the substantial

decline in extraordinary impairment loss on fixed assets incurred

in the previous fiscal year.

NET INCOME

In securing a turnaround in income before income taxes and minor-

ity interest, Daikyo recorded deferred income taxes of ¥7.7 billion

in line with deferred tax assets. As a result, consolidated net

income was ¥31.9 billion ($271.6 million), from a net loss of ¥101.6

billion in the previous fiscal year.

Net income per share was ¥97.61 ($0.83) compared with net

loss per share of ¥543.43 in the previous fiscal year.

FINANCIAL POSITION AND LIQUIDITY

TOTAL ASSETS AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Total assets as of March 31, 2006 stood at ¥400.9 billion ($3,412.7

million) down from ¥430.1 billion as of the previous fiscal year-end.

This was mainly attributed to efforts to streamline inventories of

completed condominiums and the sale and disposal of property

and equipment both in Japan and overseas.

Consolidated total shareholders’ equity climbed from ¥53.7

billion as of the previous fiscal year-end to ¥91.1 billion ($775.4

million) as of March 31, 2006. In addition to net income of ¥31.9

billion ($271.6 million), this improvement was attributed to an

increase in additional paid-in capital of ¥5.6 billion due to the con-

version of Daikyo Kanri Inc. and Daikyo Jyutaku Ryutsu Inc. to

wholly owned subsidiaries.

INTEREST-BEARING DEBT

Consolidated interest-bearing debt as of March 31, 2006 stood at

¥164.1 billion ($1,397.2 million), a drop of ¥59.8 billion from

¥223.9 billion as of March 31, 2005. During the fiscal year under

review, Daikyo applied funds recovered from investments and

loans receivable to the repayment of debt. 
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CASH FLOWS

Net cash provided by operating activities was ¥30.6 billion ($260.5

million), down from ¥94.8  billion in the previous fiscal year. Major

cash inflows were income before income taxes and minority interest

of ¥27.2  billion and changes in real estate inventories and advance

payments. Major cash outflow included changes in notes and

accounts payable.

Net cash provided by investing activities totaled ¥16.8 billion

($143.1 million), down from ¥88.5 billion in the previous fiscal year.

The major components were proceeds from sales of property and

equipment overseas and collections of loans.

Net cash used in financing activities narrowed from ¥120.9

billion in the previous fiscal year to ¥59.9 billion ($509.7 million).

The principal movements were changes in short-term borrowings

and repayment of long-term debt funded from operating and invest-

ing activities.

As a result of the aforementioned activities, consolidated cash

and cash equivalents as of March 31, 2006 stood at ¥77.3 billion

($657.8 million), down ¥12.3 billion from ¥89.6 billion as of the end

of the previous fiscal year.

RISK FACTORS

Items within this report that are not statements of historical

fact constitute forward-looking statements that are based on

management’s evaluation of circumstances as of the fiscal

year-end. Accordingly, statements may differ materially from

actual results due to changes in the economic environment and

operating conditions.

As of March 31, 2006, the Daikyo Group has identified certain

risks that it believes may materially impact its performance and

financial position. In addition, readers are advised that unforeseen

risks that can significantly affect the Group’s performance and

financial position may arise in the future due to changes in the

economic environment and operating conditions.

The Daikyo Group is committed to identifying risks on an

individual basis and appropriately evaluating each in an effort to

establish an optimal risk management system.

The aforementioned major risks identified as of March 31, 2006

are as follows.

REAL ESTATE MARKET RISK

The condominium development and sales business, the mainstay

activity of the Daikyo Group, is particularly susceptible to move-

ments in land prices, the supply of condominiums by competitors

and product prices. In addition, housing demand and the value of

assets held may change due to economic recession, an increase

in interest rates, changes in real estate-related taxes and the eco-

nomic environment. As a result of these factors, the Daikyo Group’s

performance and financial position may be affected.

OTHER MARKET RISKS (INTEREST RATES, SHARE PRICES,

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATES)

Funding to support the Group’s mainstay condominium develop-

ment and sales business is mainly procured from financial insti-

tutions in the form of debt. In the event interest rates rise above

expectations, the Group’ performance may be affected. The Daikyo

Group is taking every step to reduce its interest-bearing debt and

to establish a variety of diverse funds procurement methods in an

effort to minimize interest rate risk.

As a part of its operating and investment activities, the Daikyo

Group maintains equity in publicly listed and private companies.

In the event of a significant devaluation in the Group’s holdings

due to an across-the-board and substantial decline in share prices,

the Group’s performance may be affected.

Furthermore, the Daikyo Group maintains two companies in

Australia. Given the decision to withdraw from operations con-

ducted in Australia as identified in the Business Revitalization Plan,

asset values following conversion to yen may be affected due to

movements in foreign exchange rates.

CREDIT RISK

In the natural course of its business activities, the Daikyo Group

enters into construction agreements with a number of con-

struction and contracting companies. In the event a contracted

construction company suffers a material loss of credibility, which

contributes to a delay in project completion, the Group’s performance

may be affected.

BUSINESS RISKS

The Daikyo Group is engaged in the evaluation and survey of devel-

opment sites, acquisition, condominium design, construction and

sale. As such, an individual development project extends over a

significant period before income is collected and secured.

Furthermore, the Group’s mainstay condominium development

and sales business is subject to a variety of public authority

approvals and procedures, including efforts to gain the support of

neighboring residents. Accordingly, the Daikyo Group is subject

to a variety of business risks outlined briefly as follows.
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Opposition by Local and Neighboring Residents

In addition to acquiring all necessary approvals stipulated under

the Building Standards Law and the Urban Planning Law for each

particular condominium development, as well as adhering to local

government guidelines, the Daikyo Group strives to obtain the

opinions of neighboring residents and the local community. At the

same time, the Group endeavors to ensure harmony with the local

environment as well as protection of natural surroundings.

Notwithstanding the acquisition of necessary approval, in the

event the Daikyo Group is forced to amend its development plans

due to opposition and negotiations with local and neighboring

residents, the Group’s performance may be affected.

Changes in Development Plans and Delays attributed to Site

Risk including Soil Contamination

Prior to acquiring land for condominium development, the Daikyo

Group makes every effort to ascertain the presence or otherwise

of buried objects, soil pollution and chemical substances. In

addition, the Group imposes a liability on the seller at the time of

purchase and sale agreement execution to cover soil contamination

and damage in an effort to minimize risk.

In the event, however, any ensuing damage materially exceeds

expectations or the seller is unable to meet the amount of damages

incurred, thereby resulting in changes in original development plans,

delay in completion or increase in costs, the Group’s business

performance may be affected.

Seller Liability for Defects

The Daikyo Group is committed to ensuring product quality and

safety in connection with its condominium developments. To this

end, the Group contracts with experienced and technically capa-

ble construction companies and contractors based on in-house

standards and criteria while continuously reinforcing its proprietary

evaluation systems.

In the event a construction defect results in a claim against the

Daikyo Group as seller, any loss incurred as well as damage to the

Group’s reputation and credibility may affect future performance.

Changes in Real Estate-Related Laws

In the event future changes in the Building Standards Law, Urban

Planning Law and real estate-related laws result in new obligations

imposed on the Daikyo Group or an increase in costs, the Group’s

performance may be affected.

LEGAL RISKS (PERSONAL INFORMATION MANAGEMENT)

As a part of its condominium management business, the Daikyo

Group collects and maintains a significant volume of personal infor-

mation from a variety of sources including condominium pur-

chasers, individuals contemplating the purchase of a condominium

and compartmentalized owners. The Daikyo Group maintains inter-

nal rules and systems to handle personal information in accordance

with the Personal Information Protection Law. In the event of an

unforeseen circumstance in which personal information is lost or

leaked externally resulting in a loss of credibility, decline in sales

or a claim for damages, the Group’s performance may be affected.

SYSTEM RISK

The Daikyo Group implements measure including data backup to

ensure the safety and reliability of its computer systems. In the

event of unforeseen circumstances in which the Group’s systems

are suspended resulting in damages that significantly impact the

Group’s business process and activities, performance may be

affected.

DISASTER RISK

The Daikyo Group’s performance may be affected by terrorist attack

or earthquakes and other natural disasters including wind and

flood damage, accident and fire.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
March 31, 2005 and 2006

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 3)

ASSETS 2005 2006 2006

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and deposits (Note 9) ¥ 90,328 ¥ 83,446 $ 710,363

Marketable securities (Note 5) 210 525 4,469

Notes and accounts receivable 5,958 6,583 56,040

Allowance for doubtful accounts (Note 2 (7)) (878) (552) (4,700)

5,080 6,031 51,340

Inventories (Notes 4 and 8) 242,192 236,986 2,017,417

Advance payments 2,409 1,290 10,982

Deferred income taxes 2,532 12,583 107,120

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 18,168 8,618 73,361

Total current assets 360,919 349,479 2,975,052

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, LESS ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 

(Notes 6 and 8) 36,142 21,719 184,891

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS:

Advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates 10,496 7,871 67,001

Investment securities (Notes 5 and 8) 9,177 6,331 53,896

Other investments 2,942 2,361 20,099

Allowance for doubtful accounts (Note 2 (7)) (7,192) (5,893) (50,169)

Deferred income taxes 4,012 1,575 13,410

Other Assets (Note 8) 13,577 17,443 148,491

Total investments and other fixed assets 33,012 29,688 252,728

Total assets ¥430,073 ¥400,886 $3,412,671

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 3)

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 2005 2006 2006

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Short-term bank loans (Note 8) ¥ 28,544 ¥ 1,566 $ 13,331

Current portion of long-term debt (Note 8) 79,822 37,656 320,558

Notes and accounts payable 98,982 81,615 694,775

Advances received from customers 13,672 22,895 194,905

Accrued expenses 5,861 6,067 51,646

Income taxes payable 487 1,316 11,199

Other current liabilities 11,888 12,048 102,564

Total current liabilities 239,256 163,163 1,388,978

LONG-TERM DEBT (Note 8) 115,548 124,906 1,063,303

RESERVE FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Notes 2 (8) and 10) 2,099 2,358 20,074

OTHER LIABILITIES 9,842 9,213 78,432

Total liabilities 366,745 299,640 2,550,787

MINORITY INTEREST IN CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 9,605 10,165 86,530

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:

Capital stock,

Common stock,

Authorized: 1,191,000,000 shares at March 31, 2005 and 2006

Preferred stock, 

Authorized: 150,000,000 shares at March 31, 2005 and 2006 27,000 27,000 229,845

Additional paid-in capital 121,046 27,793 236,595

Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) (89,481) 41,374 352,210

Net unrealized gains on other securities (Notes 2 (3) and 5) 2,075 807 6,872

Translation adjustments (Note 2 (2)) (6,810) (5,792) (49,309)

Less: Treasury stock at cost (107) (101) (859)

Total shareholders’ equity 53,723 91,081 775,354

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Note 12)

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ¥430,073 ¥400,886 $3,412,671
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2006

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 3)

2005 2006 2006

NET SALES ¥ 450,652 ¥434,303 $3,697,138

COST OF SALES 430,184 363,846 3,097,352

Gross profit 20,468 70,457 599,786

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 40,948 40,219 342,377

Operating income (loss) (20,480) 30,238 257,409

OTHER INCOME (Expenses):

Interest and dividend income 1,185 512 4,358

Interest expense (8,767) (4,711) (40,106)

Gain on sales of investments in subsidiaries or affiliates 5,488 — —

Gain on sales of property and equipment 24,499 4,196 35,722

Gain on debt-forgiveness 103,479 — —

Loss on financial support to affiliated companies (11,918) — —

Impairment loss on fixed assets (182,857) (6,541) (55,683)

Loss on write-down of inventories (3,687) — —

Other, net (8,189) 3,462 29,473

Income (loss) before income taxes and minority interest (101,247) 27,156 231,173

INCOME TAXES (Note 11)

Current 238 1,109 9,439

Deferred 902 (7,669) (65,285)

MINORITY INTEREST IN (EARNINGS) LOSS OF CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 770 (1,816) (15,462)

Net income (loss) ¥(101,617) ¥ 31,900 $ 271,557

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 3)

RETAINED EARNINGS (Accumulated Deficit):

Balance at beginning of year ¥ 3,588 ¥ (89,481) $ (761,734)

Cash dividends (1,200) — —

Bonuses to directors and statutory auditors (7) — —

Transfer from other capital surplus — 64,547 549,473

Transfer of additional paid-in capital — 34,361 292,513

Net adjustments to retained earnings due to merger 157 47 401

Net adjustment to retained earnings due to exclusion of consolidated subsidiaries 9,592 — —

Net adjustments to retained earnings due to increase in consolidated subsidiaries 6 — —

Balance at end of the period ¥ (89,481) ¥ 41,374 $ 352,210

Yen U.S. dollars

PER SHARE:

Net income (loss) ¥ (543.43) ¥ 97.61 $ 0.83

Fully diluted net income — 43.70 0.37

WEIGHTED-AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES (thousands) 186,991 320,581

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2006

Millions of yen

Retained Net unrealized
Common Preferred Additional earnings gains (losses)

stock stock Capital paid-in (accumulated on other Translation Treasury
(thousands) (thousands) stock capital deficit) securities adjustments stock

BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2004 185,314 150,000 ¥ 65,046 ¥ 30,000 ¥ 3,588 ¥ 3,199 ¥ (7,576) ¥ (81)

Net income (loss) — — — — (101,617) — — —

Cash dividends — — — — (1,200) — — —

Bonuses to directors and statutory auditors — — — — (7) — — —

Stock issued to third parties 133,720 — 11,500 11,500 — — — —

Stock issued to third parties by debt-equity swap — 75,000 15,000 15,000 — — — —

Deduction for reducing accumulated deficit — (75,000) (64,546) 64,546 — — — —

Decrease in net unrealized gains on other securities — — — — — (1,124) — —

Translation adjustments — — — — — — 766 —

Net adjustments to retained earnings due to merger — — — — 157 — — —

Net adjustments to retained earnings due to 
increase in consolidated subsidiaries — — — — 6 — — —

Net adjustments to retained earnings due to 
exclusion of consolidated subsidiaries — — — — 9,592 — — —

Changes in treasury stock — — — — — — — (26)

BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2005 319,034 150,000 ¥ 27,000 ¥ 121,046 ¥ (89,481) ¥ 2,075 ¥ (6,810) ¥ (107)

Net income — — — — 31,900 — — —

Increase of stock by a stock swap 8,176 — — 5,609 — — — —

Sales of treasury stock — — — 46 — — — —

Transfer to retained earnings — — — (64,547) — — — —

Transfer of additional paid-in capital — — — (34,361) 34,361 — — —

Transfer from additional paid-in capital — — — — 64,547 — — —

Net adjustments to retained earnings due to merger — — — — 47 — — —

Decrease in net unrealized gains on other securities — — — — — (1,268) — —

Translation adjustments — — — — — — 1,018 —

Changes in treasury stock — — — — — — — 6

BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2006 327,210 150,000 ¥ 27,000 ¥ 27,793 ¥ 41,374 ¥ 807 ¥ (5,792) ¥ (101)

Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 3)

Retained Net unrealized
Common Preferred Additional earnings gains (losses)

stock stock Capital paid-in (accumulated on other Translation Treasury
(thousands) (thousands) stock capital deficit) securities adjustments stock

BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2005 319,034 150,000 $229,845 $1,030,446 $(761,734) $ 17,660 $(57,974) $ (914)

Net income — — — — 271,557 — — —

Increase of stock by a stock swap 8,176 — — 47,746 — — — —

Sales of treasury stock — — — 389 — — — —

Transfer to retained earnings — — — (549,473) — — — —

Transfer of additional paid-in capital — — — (292,513) 292,513 — — —

Transfer from additional paid-in capital — — — — 549,473 — — —

Net adjustments to retained earnings due to merger — — — — 401 — — —

Decrease in net unrealized gains on other securities — — — — — (10,788) — —

Translation adjustments — — — — — — 8,665 —

Changes in treasury stock — — — — — — — 55

BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2006 327,210 150,000 $229,845 $ 236,595 $ 352,210 $ 6,872 $(49,309) $ (859)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

Number of
shares issued

Number of
shares issued
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2006

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 3)

2005 2006 2006

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Income (loss) before income taxes and minority interest ¥(101,247) ¥ 27,156 $ 231,173
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization 1,902 1,090 9,276
Impairment loss on fixed assets 182,857 6,541 55,683
Gain on sales of property and equipment (24,385) (4,007) (34,110)
Valuation loss on investment securities 28 — —
Gain on sales of investment in subsidiaries or affiliates (5,488) — —
Gain on sales of investment securities (1,772) (3,438) (29,268)
Equity in gains (losses) under the equity method 1,180 (716) (6,096)
Reversal of (provision for) allowance for doubtful accounts 1,637 (1,433) (12,201)
Valuation loss on real estate inventories 3,687 — —
Gain on debt-forgiveness (103,479) — —
Gain on transfer of business (1,897) — —
Loss on financial support to affiliated companies 11,918 — —
Interest and dividend income (1,185) (512) (4,358)
Interest expense 8,767 4,711 40,106

Changes in notes and accounts receivable and accrued expenses 6,671 8,759 74,561
Changes in real estate inventories and advance payments 121,369 10,929 93,033
Changes in notes and accounts payable 7,979 (17,578) (149,641)
Changes in guarantee deposits (4,425) 192 1,637
Other (1,068) 3,229 27,494

Subtotal 103,049 34,923 297,289
Interest and dividend received 1,069 755 6,433
Interest paid (7,607) (4,713) (40,118)
Income taxes paid (1,761) (363) (3,092)

Net cash provided by operating activities 94,750 30,602 260,512

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Payments for purchase of property and equipment (3,123) (814) (6,928)
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment 61,106 10,625 90,445
Payments for purchase of intangible fixed assets (199) (198) (1,684)
Proceeds from sales of intangible fixed assets 398 15 124
Payments for purchase of marketable securities (500) — —
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities 1,160 312 2,660
Payments for purchase of investment securities (133) (151) (1,285)
Proceeds from sales of investment securities 9,925 5,198 44,249
Acquisitions of shares by change in number of companies 626 1,016 8,652
Proceeds from transfer of business 2,960 — —
Increases in loans (149) (204) (1,735)
Collections of loans 16,148 6,885 58,614
Changes in time deposit 317 (5,871) (49,985)

Net cash provided by investing activities 88,536 16,813 143,127

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Changes in short-term borrowings (13,404) (26,978) (229,661)
Proceeds from long-term debt 173,768 141,019 1,200,467
Repayment of long-term debt (302,944) (173,914) (1,480,501)
Issuance of common stock 23,000 — —
Cash dividends paid (1,200) — —
Other (121) (7) (54)

Net cash used for financing activities (120,901) (59,880) (509,749)
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND 

CASH EQUIVALENTS 29 172 1,461

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ¥ 62,414 ¥ (12,293) $ (104,649)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 30,850 89,566 762,462
DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS DUE TO EXCLUSION 

FROM CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES (4,121) — —
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS DUE TO MERGER 423 — —

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR ¥ 89,566 ¥ 77,273 $ 657,813

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Daikyo

Incorporated (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the

“Companies”) are prepared on the basis of accounting principles gen-

erally accepted in Japan, which are different in certain respects as

to application and disclosure requirements of International Financial

Reporting Standards, and are compiled from the consolidated finan-

cial statements prepared by the Companies as required by the

Securities and Exchange Law of Japan. The consolidated state-

ments of shareholders’ equity for the years ended March 31, 2005

and 2006 have been prepared to provide additional information.

Certain items presented in the consolidated financial statements

submitted to the Director of Kanto Finance Bureau in Japan have

been reclassified in these accounts for the convenience of readers

outside Japan.

01 BASIS  OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) CONSOLIDATION AND INVESTMENTS IN 

AFFILIATED COMPANIES

(i) Scope of Consolidation and Elimination

The Company had 11 subsidiaries as at March 31, 2006 (12 sub-

sidiaries as at March 31, 2005). The consolidated financial state-

ments include the accounts of the Company and 7 (10 for 2005)

subsidiaries at March 31, 2006.

The major subsidiaries which have been consolidated with the

Company are listed below:
Equity

ownership
percentage

Daikyo Australia Pty. Ltd. 100.0%

Daikyo (North Queensland) Pty. Ltd. 100.0

Daikyo Jyutaku Ryutsu Incorporated 100.0

Daikyo Kanri Incorporated 100.0

Fuso Lexel Incorporated 51.2

Okinawa Daikyo Incorporated 100.0

The accounts of the remaining 4 unconsolidated subsidiaries

had insignificant amounts of total assets, net sales, net income

and surplus and therefore have been excluded from consolidation.

(ii) Elimination of Intercompany Accounts

For the purposes of preparing the consolidated financial statements,

all significant intercompany transactions, account balances and

unrealized profits among the Companies have been entirely elimi-

nated, and the portion thereof attributable to minority interest has

been charged/credited to minority interest.

For the elimination of investments in the common stock of

consolidated subsidiaries, together with the equity in net assets of

such subsidiaries, any difference between such subsidiaries, any

difference between such investment costs and the amount of

underlying equity in net assets of the subsidiary is being amortized

to income over a twenty-year period on a straight-line basis.

Legal reserves of consolidated subsidiaries provided subsequent

to the acquisition of such subsidiaries by the Company are included

in retained earnings in the consolidated financial statements.

(iii) Investments in Unconsolidated Subsidiaries and Affiliates

The Company had 4 (2 for 2005) unconsolidated subsidiaries and

3 (4 for 2005) affiliates at March 31, 2006. The equity method is

applied to the investments in 2 major affiliates (3 major affiliates

for 2005) since investments in the other unconsolidated sub-

sidiaries and remaining affiliates do not have a material effect on

consolidated net income and retained earnings in the consolidated

financial statements.

The affiliates accounted for by the equity method as at and for

the year ended March 31, 2006, are listed below:
Percentage owned by

the Company
Name of affiliates (directly and indirectly)

GRO-BELS Co., Ltd. 33.6%

L Property Incorporated 51.0

(2) TRANSACTION OF FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS 

AND ACCOUNTS

All monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies,

whether long-term or short-term, are translated into Japanese yen at

the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Resulting

gains and losses are included in net profit or loss for the period.

Assets and liabilities of the foreign subsidiaries and affiliates

are translated into Japanese yen at the exchange rates prevailing

at the balance sheet date. The shareholders’ equity at beginning of

the year is translated into Japanese yen at the historical rates.

Profit and loss accounts for the year are translated into Japanese

yen using the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date.

Differences in yen amounts arising from the use of different rates are

presented as “Translation adjustments” in the shareholders’ equity.

(3) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Securities held by the Company and its subsidiaries are classified

into the following categories.

Held-to-maturity debt securities, that the Company and its

subsidiaries have intent to hold to maturity, are stated at cost after

accounting for premium or discount on acquisition, and are amortized

over the period to maturity.

02 SUMMARY OF S IGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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Other securities for which market quotations are available are

stated at fair value. Net unrealized gains or losses on these secu-

rities are reported as a separate item in the shareholders’ equity

at a net-of-tax amount.

Other securities for which market quotations are unavailable

are stated at cost, except as stated in the paragraph below.

In cases where the fair value of held-to-maturity debt securi-

ties, or other securities, has declined significantly and such impair-

ment of the value is not deemed temporary, those securities are

written down to the fair value and the resulting losses are included

in net profit or loss for the period.

Trading securities and debt securities due within one year are

presented as “current” and all the other securities are presented

as “non-current.”

(4) INVENTORIES AND BASIS OF REVENUE RECOGNITION

Real estate for sale, real estate for sale in progress and real estate

for development projects are stated at cost, which is determined

by the identification cost method.

Revenue from sales of condominiums and land is recognized

when units are delivered and accepted by the customers.

Revenue from leasing of office space and shops is recognized

as rent accrued over the life of the lease.

(5) PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment, including significant renewals and

improvements, are carried at cost less depreciation. Maintenance

and repairs, including minor renewals and betterments, are charged

to income as incurred. Depreciation is computed on the declining-

balance method for property and equipment except for buildings

being computed on the straight-line method, based on the esti-

mated useful lives of assets which are prescribed by the Japanese

income tax laws.

When retired or disposed of, the difference between the net

book value and sales proceeds is charged or credited to income.

(6) ACCOUNTING STANDARD FOR IMPAIRMENT OF FIXED

ASSETS

On August 9, 2002, the Business Accounting Council in Japan

issued “Accounting Standard for Impairment of Fixed Assets.” The

standard requires that fixed assets be reviewed for impairment

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the

carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. An impairment

loss shall be recognized in the income statement by reducing the

carrying amount of impaired assets or a group of assets to the

recoverable amount to be measured as the higher of net selling

price and value in use.

The standard should be effective for fiscal years beginning

April 1, 2005. However, an earlier adoption is permitted for fiscal

years beginning April 1, 2004 and for fiscal years ending between

March 31, 2004 and March 30, 2005.

Effective from the year ended March 31, 2005, the Company

and its subsidiaries early adopted the new accounting standard.

As a result of adopting the new standard, impairment loss on

fixed assets of ¥182,857 million was recorded. However, due to

sales of impaired assets in this fiscal year, loss on sales of property

and equipment related to impaired assets decreased. Accordingly,

loss before income taxes and minority interest increased by

¥34,286 million.

(7) ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

The Company and consolidated subsidiaries provide an allowance

for doubtful accounts by the method which uses the percentage

of its own actual experience of bad debt loss written off against

the balance of total receivables plus the amount deemed necessary

to cover individual accounts estimated to be uncollectible.

(8) RESERVE FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The parent company and the subsidiaries in Japan have severance

indemnity plans and non-contributory defined benefit funded pen-

sion plans, covering substantially all of their employees who meet

eligibility requirements of the retirement regulations. Under the

plans, employees whose service with the company is terminated

are, under most circumstances, entitled to lump-sum severance

indemnities and/or pension payments, determined by reference

to current basic rate of pay, length of service and conditions under

which the termination occurs. The funding policy is to make con-

tributions that can be deducted for Japanese income tax purposes.

The parent company and certain subsidiaries in Japan also have

contributory defined pension plans, covering substantially all of

their employees. The pension benefits are determined based on

years of service and the compensation amount as stipulated in the

regulations. The governmental welfare pension contributions are

funded in conformity with the requirements regulated by the

Japanese Welfare Pension Insurance Law.

The reserve for retirement benefits represents the estimated

present value of projected benefit obligations in excess of the fair

value of the plan assets except that, as permitted under the new

standard, the unrecognized transition amount arising from adopt-

ing the new standard is amortized on a straight-line basis over 15

years and unrecognized actuarial differences are amortized on a

straight-line basis over the period of 5 to 10 years from the next

year in which they arise. The unrecognized prior service costs are

charged to expense as incurred.
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Effective from the year ended March 31, 2006, the amortiza-

tion period of unrecognized actuarial differences has changed from

10 years to 5 years and 8 years due to the shortening of employees’

average remaining service period. The effect from the change of

the amortization period is minor.

(9) INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes is computed based on income

before income taxes and minority interest in the consolidated state-

ments of operations. The asset and liability approach is used to

recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future

tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying

amounts and the tax basis assets and liabilities.

The Company filed under the consolidated tax return system

from the year ended March 31, 2005. Under the consolidated

tax return system, the Company consolidates all wholly owned

domestic subsidiaries based on the Japanese tax regulations.

Effective from April 1, 2004, the enterprise tax components

attributed to added value and capital were reported in selling,

general and administrative expenses due to the change in the

standard enterprise tax component amounts in Japan. Selling,

general and administrative expenses increased by ¥264 million. As

a result, operating loss and loss before income taxes and minority

interest increased by ¥264 million for the fiscal year ended March

31, 2005, accordingly.

(10) LEASE CONTRACTS

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership of the assets are accounted for as capital leases, except

that leases do not transfer ownership of the assets at the end

of the lease term are accounted for as operating leases, in

accordance with accounting principles and practices generally

accepted in Japan.

(11) DERIVATIVES

The Companies engage in derivative transactions to manage risk

associated with fluctuations in interest rates and to reduce the

cost of raising funds. The Companies do not engage in derivative

transactions for speculation purposes.

Interest rate swap contracts, of which the basis is completely

related to working assets or loans payable, are used to manage

the risk of loss stemming from interest rate fluctuations that may

affect the Companies’ overall asset and liability structure.

The Companies apply deferral hedge accounting to such deriv-

atives instruments. Also, the Companies apply a “Special procedure

for interest rate swaps” that does not evaluate interest rate swaps

by market value, but adjusts interest receipts and payments of the

swaps to interest of the hedged object on condition that notional

principal, amounts of interest receipts and payments, and contract

terms of interest swaps are identical with those of the assets or

liabilities or hedged objects. The Companies omit evaluation of

hedge effectiveness for interest rate swaps, because the

Companies confirm whether the contracts meet the conditions of

special treatment in line with its risk management policy at the

time an interest rate swap contract is concluded.

The Companies are exposed to credit-related losses in the

event of non-performance by counter parties to derivative financial

instruments. However, it is not expected that any counter parties

will fail to meet their obligations since they are all creditworthy

financial institutions. Execution and control of derivative transac-

tions are carried out by the accounting division of the relevant com-

pany. However, monetary transactions are executed on approval

of the Board of Directors of each company based on rules set forth

by its Board. The scope of execution authority and execution

amount is based on each Company’s administrative rules. The

results of transactions are reported each month to the directors

responsible for financial affairs.

The fair value of the derivatives outstanding as of March 31,

2006 was omitted due to derivatives being hedge accounted.

(12) NET INCOME PER SHARE

Net income per share is computed based on the weighted aver-

age number of shares of common stock issued and outstanding

during each fiscal period.

(13) APPROPRIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS

Under the Japanese Commercial Code and the Articles of

Incorporation of the Company, the plan for appropriation of retained

earnings (primarily for cash dividend payments) proposed by the

Board of Directors needs to be approved by the shareholders’

meeting, which must be held within three months after the end

of each fiscal year.

The appropriation of retained earnings reflected in the

accompanying financial statements represents the result of such

appropriations applicable to the immediately preceding fiscal year

which was approved by the shareholders’ meeting and disposed

of during that year. Dividends are paid to shareholders listed in the

shareholders’ register at the end of each fiscal year.
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The Companies maintain their accounting records in Japanese yen.

The U.S. dollar amounts included in the accompanying consoli-

dated financial statements and notes thereto represent the arith-

metical results of translating Japanese yen to U.S. dollars on a basis

Inventories at March 31, 2005 and 2006, consisted of:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2005 2006 2006

Real estate for sale

Condominiums ¥ 43,997 ¥ 22,433 $ 190,970

Land and others 5,478 2,426 20,651

Subtotal 49,475 24,859 211,621

Real estate for sale in progress 159,477 139,570 1,188,136

Real estate for development projects

Condominiums 32,254 69,138 588,553

Land and others 986 3,419 29,107

Subtotal 192,717 212,127 1,805,796

Total ¥242,192 ¥236,986 $2,017,417

of ¥117.47=US$1.00. The inclusion of such U.S. dollar amounts

is solely for the convenience of the reader and is not intended to

imply that Japanese yen mounts have been or could be readily

converted, realized or settled in U.S. dollars at this or any other rate.

03 UNITED STATES DOLLAR AMOUNTS

04 INVENTORIES

Market value information on marketable securities, and investment securities and unconsolidated subsidiaries/affiliates as of March

31, 2005 and 2006, are summarized as follows:

(1) MARKET VALUE OF BONDS HELD TO MATURITY

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2005 2006 2006

Securities with fair value that exceed book value

Book value ¥270 ¥ 25 $ 210

Market value 271 25 213

Difference 1 0 3

Securities with fair value that do not exceed book value

Book value — 768 6,540

Market value — 762 6,485

Difference — (6) (55)

Total

Book value ¥270 ¥793 $6,750

Market value 271 787 6,698

Difference 1 (6) (52)

05 MARKET VALUE INFORMATION
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(2) OTHER SECURITIES WITH DEFINED VALUES

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2005 2006 2006

Securities with fair value that exceed book value

Stocks

Acquisition cost ¥ 2,339 ¥ 1,106 $ 9,420

Book value 5,800 2,508 21,353

Difference 3,461 1,402 11,933

Total

Acquisition cost ¥ 2,339 ¥ 1,106 $ 9,420

Book value 5,800 2,508 21,353

Difference 3,461 1,402 11,933

(3) OTHER SECURITIES SOLD DURING THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2005 AND 2006

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2005 2006 2006

Amount sold ¥ 3,827 ¥ 4,563 $38,845

Gain 1,772 3,369 28,684

Loss — — —

(4) MAJOR COMPONENTS AND BOOK VALUES OF SECURITIES WITHOUT MARKET VALUE

Book value

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2005 2006 2006

Other securities

Unlisted stocks ¥457 ¥226 $1,926

(5) REPAYMENT SCHEDULE OF AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES AND BONDS HELD TO MATURITY

Maturity value

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2005 2006 2006

Within one year ¥210 ¥525 $4,469

Over one year and within five years 135 205 1,745

Over five years and within ten years 100 70 596

Over ten years — — —

Property and equipment at March 31, 2005 and 2006, were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2005 2006 2006

Buildings and structures ¥11,411 ¥ 5,517 $ 46,968

Furniture and other equipment 4,117 2,135 18,174

Subtotal 15,528 7,652 65,142

Less: Accumulated depreciation 6,955 4,181 35,590

Net book value 8,573 3,471 29,552

Land 27,569 18,248 155,339

Total ¥36,142 ¥21,719 $184,891

06 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
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If capital leases that do not transfer the ownership of the assets to the lessee at the end of lease term had been capitalized, capital

lease assets at March 31, 2005 and 2006, would have been as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2005 2006 2006

Acquisition cost ¥ 1,943 ¥ 1,623 $13,816

Accumulated depreciation (1,018) (604) (5,140)

Net book value ¥ 925 ¥ 1,019 $ 8,676

Depreciation ¥ 488 ¥ 439 $ 3,736

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the lease term of the leased assets, the residual values of which

are zero.

Lease rental expenses on finance lease contracts without transfer of ownership for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2006, are

summarized as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2005 2006 2006

Lease rental expenses ¥488 ¥439 $3,736

The amount of outstanding future lease payments under finance lease contracts due at March 31, 2005 and 2006, which included

the portion of interest thereon, is summarized as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2005 2006 2006

Future lease payments

Within one year ¥391 ¥ 352 $2,995

Over one year 534 667 5,681

Total ¥925 ¥ 1,019 $8,676

The amounts of outstanding future lease rental payments payable and receivable under operating lease contracts due at March 31,

2005 and 2006, are summarized as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2005 2006 2006

Future lease rental payments payable

Within one year ¥ 2,725 ¥ 2,715 $23,118

Over one year 6,460 3,757 31,983

Total ¥ 9,185 ¥ 6,472 $55,101

Future lease rental payments receivable

Within one year ¥ 582 ¥ 582 $ 4,956

Over one year 2,266 1,684 14,330

Total ¥ 2,848 ¥ 2,266 $19,286

07 LEASE TRANSACTIONS

Short-term and long-term debt at March 31, 2005 and 2006, consisted of the following:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Average

2005 2006 2006 interest rate

Short-term bank loans ¥ 28,544 ¥ 1,566 $ 13,331 2.28%

Current portion of long-term debt 79,822 37,656 320,558 1.89

Long-term debt 115,548 124,906 1,063,303 1.27

Total ¥223,914 ¥164,128 $1,397,192 —

08 SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM DEBT
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The aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt outstanding at March 31, 2006, during the next five years were as follows:
Thousands of

Year ending March 31 Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2008 ¥105,960 $ 902,019

2009 17,538 149,298

2010 1,408 11,986

2011 — —

2012 and thereafter — —

Total ¥124,906 $1,063,303

The Companies’ assets pledged as collateral for short-term loans, and long-term loans with banks and other financial institutions,

and deposits received for guarantees at March 31, 2006, are summarized as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2006 2006

Inventories ¥138,155 $1,176,092

Net book value of property and equipment: 16,412 139,710

Buildings and structures 1,854 15,781

Other equipment 2 15

Land 14,556 123,914

Subtotal 154,567 1,315,802

Investment securities 11,297 96,172

Other assets 1,500 12,766

Total ¥167,364 $1,424,740

The above “Investment securities” includes investments in subsidiaries, which were eliminated for the preparation of these

consolidated financial statements.

09 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(1) Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank deposits withdrawable on demand and highly liquid investments

with initial maturities of three months or less and a low risk of fluctuation in value.

(2) Cash and cash equivalents at March 31, 2005 and 2006, consisted of the following:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2005 2006 2006

Cash and bank deposits ¥90,328 ¥83,446 $710,363

Time deposits with deposit term of over 3 months (762) (6,673) (56,806)

Marketable securities with maturities of 3 months or less — 500 4,256

Cash and Cash Equivalents ¥89,566 ¥77,273 $657,813

(3) Assets and liabilities of subsidiary which is added to the scope of consolidation are as follows:
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Current assets ¥1,222 $10,401

Other assets 151 1,283

Total assets ¥1,373 $11,684

Current liabilities ¥1,225 $10,433

Long-term liabilities 4 30

Total liabilities ¥1,229 $10,463
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(4) Contents of principal non-cash transactions
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Capital surplus increase by a stock swap with consolidated subsidiaries ¥5,609 $47,746

The Company and consolidated subsidiaries have defined benefit retirement plans that include corporate defined benefit pensions plans

(CDBPs), which are governed by the Japanese Welfare Pension Insurance Law, tax-qualified pension plans and lump-sum payment plans.

The reserve for retirement benefits as of March 31, 2005 and 2006, is analyzed as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2005 2006 2006

Projected benefit obligations ¥(11,848) ¥(11,798) $(100,436)

Plan assets 6,656 8,848 75,317

Net (5,192) (2,950) (25,119)

Unrecognized transition amount 1,241 1,117 9,508

Unrecognized prior service cost (91) (49) (413)

Unrecognized actuarial differences 3,248 467 3,975

Subtotal (794) (1,415) (12,049)

Prepaid pension cost 1,305 943 8,025

Net ¥ 2,099 ¥ 2,358 $ 20,074

Net pension expense related to retirement benefits for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2006, is as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2005 2006 2006

Service cost ¥ 647 ¥ 894 $ 7,608

Interest cost 173 216 1,843

Expected return on plan assets (156) (195) (1,661)

Amortization of transition amount 113 124 1,056

Amortization of unrecognized actuarial differences 377 707 6,021

Prior service cost (43) 89 756

Net ¥ 1,111 ¥ 1,835 $15,623

Assumptions used in calculation of the above information were as follows:
2005 2006

Discount rate 1.8–2.0% 1.8–2.0%

Expected rate of return on plan assets 1.3–3.0% 1.3–3.0%

Method of attributing the projected benefits to 
periods of service Straight-line basis Straight-line basis

Unrecognized prior service cost All expensed in current year All expensed in current year

Amortization of transition amount 15 years 15 years

Amortization of unrecognized actuarial differences Over 5 to 10 years subsequent Over 5 to 8 years subsequent 
to the fiscal year of occurrence to the fiscal year of occurrence

10 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS
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The Companies are subject to a number of different income taxes, which, in aggregate, resulted in a statutory tax return in Japan of

approximately 40.7% for each of the two years ended March 31, 2005 and 2006.

The difference between the statutory income tax rate and the income tax rate reflected in the consolidated statements of operations

can be reconciled as follows:
2005 2006

Statutory tax rate — 40.7%

Reconciliation

Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes — 1.5

Per capita inhabitant taxes — 0.3

Rate difference from consolidated subsidiaries — (2.0)

Application of consolidated tax return system to consolidated subsidiaries — 6.2

Decrease of valuation allowance — (70.9)

Income tax rate per statements of operations — (24.2%)

The significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 31, 2005 and 2006, were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2005 2006 2006

Deferred tax assets:

Impairment loss on fixed assets ¥ 12,565 ¥ 13,729 $ 116,868

Loss carryforwards 83,525 67,152 571,655

Allowance for doubtful accounts 1,700 1,632 13,894

Inventory devaluation 1,455 1,127 9,599

Unrealized losses on subsidiaries 521 107 913

Other 4,253 3,654 31,099

Gross deferred tax assets 104,019 87,401 744,028

Less: Valuation allowance (96,705) (72,664) (618,574)

Total deferred tax assets 7,314 14,737 125,454

Deferred tax liabilities:

Unrealized gains on other securities 1,367 570 4,856

Other 752 544 4,627

Gross deferred tax liabilities 2,119 1,114 9,483

Net deferred tax assets ¥ 5,195 ¥ 13,623 $ 115,971

The valuation allowance mainly relates to deferred tax assets of the Companies with temporary differences and operating loss

carryforwards for tax purposes that are not expected to be realized.

11 INCOME TAXES

The Companies are contingently liable for guarantees at March 31, 2005 and 2006, as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2005 2006 2006

Temporary guarantees to customers until the housing loans from banks 
and financial institutions are completed ¥59,883 ¥42,088 $358,283

Total ¥59,883 ¥42,088 $358,283

12 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
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The Company and consolidated subsidiaries changed the business segmentation, from “real estate sales,” “real estate leasing,” and

“other,” to “real estate sales,” “real estate management,” “real estate brokerage,” “contract work,” and “other” according to the

classification appropriate of management situation based on the Company‘s Business Revitalization Plan.

Segment information of the Company and its subsidiaries classified by business segment for the years ended March 31, 2005 and

2006, is as follows:
Millions of yen

Eliminations
Real estate Real estate or corporate Consolidated

For the year ended March 31, 2005 sales leasing Other Total assets / expenses total

Net Sales

(1) Sales to outside customers ¥416,837 ¥13,486 ¥20,329 ¥450,652 ¥ — ¥450,652

(2) Inter-segment sales/transfers — 101 7,575 7,676 (7,676) —

Total net sales ¥416,837 ¥13,587 ¥27,904 ¥458,328 ¥(7,676) ¥450,652

Operating Expense ¥439,929 ¥12,277 ¥24,086 ¥476,292 ¥(5,160) ¥471,132

Operating income ¥ (23,092) ¥ 1,310 ¥ 3,818 ¥ (17,964) ¥(2,516) ¥ (20,480)

Assets ¥356,427 ¥22,724 ¥47,098 ¥426,249 ¥ 3,824 ¥430,073

Depreciation 289 1,230 362 1,881 — 1,881

Capital Expenditures 292 1,759 1,465 3,516 — 3,516

Segment Main business

Real estate sales Allotment sales of condominium, housing land, etc.

Real estate leasing Rental and rental management of condominiums, office buildings, etc.; condominium tenant 
support and others.

Other Real estate management and real estate brokerage, etc.; contracts for condominium equipment
work, golf courses and resort business, etc.

Millions of yen

Eliminations
Real estate Real estate Real estate Contract or corporate Consolidated

For the year ended March 31, 2006 sales management brokerage work Other Total assets / expenses total

Net Sales

(1) Sales to outside customers ¥ 363,398 ¥ 26,450 ¥ 6,170 ¥ 26,178 ¥ 12,107 ¥ 434,303 ¥ — ¥ 434,303

(2) Inter-segment sales/transfers — 30 1,719 5,938 1,134 8,821 (8,821) —

Total net sales ¥ 363,398 ¥ 26,480 ¥ 7,889 ¥ 32,116 ¥ 13,241 ¥ 443,124 ¥ (8,821) ¥ 434,303

Operating Expense ¥ 336,405 ¥ 24,672 ¥ 6,662 ¥ 30,926 ¥ 11,915 ¥ 410,580 ¥ (6,515) ¥ 404,065

Operating income ¥ 26,993 ¥ 1,808 ¥ 1,227 ¥ 1,190 ¥ 1,326 ¥ 32,544 ¥ (2,306) ¥ 30,238

Assets ¥ 345,587 ¥ 13,035 ¥ 5,165 ¥ 12,623 ¥ 27,836 ¥ 404,246 ¥ (3,360) ¥ 400,886

Depreciation 241 375 28 24 144 812 — 812

Capital Expenditures 232 126 92 51 124 625 — 625

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Eliminations
Real estate Real estate Real estate Contract or corporate Consolidated

For the year ended March 31, 2006 sales management brokerage work Other Total assets / expenses total

Net Sales

(1) Sales to outside customers $3,093,542 $225,166 $52,526 $222,850 $103,054 $3,697,138 $ — $3,697,138

(2) Inter-segment sales/transfers — 255 14,631 50,552 9,657 75,095 (75,095) —

Total net sales $3,093,542 $225,421 $67,157 $273,402 $112,711 $3,772,233 $(75,095) $3,697,138

Operating Expense $2,863,751 $210,033 $56,715 $263,265 $101,427 $3,495,191 $(55,462) $3,439,729

Operating income $ 229,791 $ 15,388 $10,442 $ 10,137 $ 11,284 $ 277,042 $(19,633) $ 257,409

Assets $2,941,920 $110,969 $43,972 $107,456 $236,960 $3,441,277 $(28,606) $3,412,671

Depreciation 2,053 3,190 237 201 1,231 6,912 — 6,912

Capital Expenditures 1,978 1,071 781 431 1,055 5,316 — 5,316

13 SEGMENT INFORMATION
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Segment Main business

Real estate sales Allotment sales of condominiums, housing land, etc.

Real estate management Management of condominiums, office buildings, etc.

Real estate brokerage Real estate brokerage and sales agency business

Contract work Contracts for condominium equipment work, etc.

Other Rental and rental management of condominiums, office buildings, etc.; condominium tenant
support and others.

If the segment information for the year ended March 31, 2005 were prepared using the new segmentation, such information would

be as follows:
Millions of yen

Eliminations
Real estate Real estate Real estate Contract or corporate Consolidated

For the year ended March 31, 2005 sales management brokerage work Other Total assets / expenses total

Net Sales

(1) Sales to outside customers ¥ 416,837 ¥ 4,086 ¥ 4,080 ¥ 7,526 ¥ 18,123 ¥ 450,652 ¥ — ¥ 450,652

(2) Inter-segment sales/transfers — 45 4,351 3,204 680 8,280 (8,280) —

Total net sales ¥ 416,837 ¥ 4,131 ¥ 8,431 ¥ 10,730 ¥ 18,803 ¥ 458,932 ¥ (8,280) ¥ 450,652

Operating Expense ¥ 439,929 ¥ 3,648 ¥ 7,189 ¥ 9,967 ¥ 15,732 ¥ 476,465 ¥ (5,333) ¥ 471,132

Operating income ¥ (23,092) ¥ 483 ¥ 1,242 ¥ 763 ¥ 3,071 ¥ (17,533) ¥ (2,947) ¥ (20,480)

Assets ¥ 357,940 ¥ 13,986 ¥ 3,009 ¥ 11,811 ¥ 40,612 ¥ 427,358 ¥ 2,715 ¥ 430,073

Depreciation 289 3 19 10 1,560 1,881 — 1,881

Capital Expenditures 292 9 37 4 3,174 3,516 — 3,516

Geographical segment information for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2006, and overseas sales information for the years ended

March 31, 2005 and 2006, have been omitted, because neither net sales of overseas subsidiaries nor overseas sales of the Companies

are material (less than 10% of the consolidated net sales amount).

Related-party transactions for the year ended March 31, 2005 were as follows:
Group Companies 2005

Type Affiliate of parent company Affiliate of parent company

Name of the related party Lions Family Incorporated Lions Family Incorporated

Address Shibuya-ku, Tokyo Shibuya-ku, Tokyo

Common stock ¥2,330 million ¥2,330 million

Type of business Housing services Housing services

Equity ownership percentage Direct 8.6%, Indirect 6.4% Direct 8.6%, Indirect 6.4%

Relation

Additional posts held by the directors Two persons Two persons

Operation relation Ordering equipment for construction of a house Ordering equipment for construction of a house

Nature of transaction Fund loan (Debt undertaking of immunity Debt waiver
from responsibility)

Transaction amount ¥10,437 million ¥6,514 million

Account — —

Balance at year-end — —
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Related-party transactions for the year ended March 31, 2006 were as follows:
Parent company and principal corporate shareholders 2006

Type Other related company Other related company

Name of the related party Orix Corporation Orix Corporation

Address Minato-ku, Tokyo Minato-ku, Tokyo

Common stock ¥88,458 million ($753,030 thousand) ¥88,458 million ($753,030  thousand)

Type of business Corporate financial service Corporate financial service

Equity ownership percentage (Owned) Direct 44.4% (Owned) Direct 44.4%

Relation

Additional posts held by the directors One person One person

Operation relation Setting of financing limited, etc. Setting of financing limited, etc.

Nature of transaction Short-term loan Interest expense, etc.

Transaction amount ¥60,616 million ($516,013 thousand) ¥684 million ($5,821 thousand)

Account — —

Balance at year-end — —

Directors and principal individual shareholders, etc. 2006

Type Officer

Name of the related party Kiyoshi Kurihara

Address —

Common stock —

Type of business Officer

Equity ownership percentage (Owned) Direct 0.0%

Relation

Additional posts held by the directors —

Operation relation —

Nature of transaction Sales of condominiums

Transaction amount ¥59 million ($504 thousand)

Account —

Balance at year-end —

(1) SALE OF THE SHARES OF CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARY

The Company agreed on its board of Directors Meeting held on

June 28, 2006 to sell its consolidated subsidiary, Daikyo Australia

Pty. Ltd. to Orix Australia (Southern Queensland) Pty. Ltd. 

(i) Reason for the sale 

The reason for the sale is to withdraw from overseas business

based on the Company’s Business Revitalization Plan.

(ii) Date of the sale: June 29, 2006

(iii) Business description: Real estate management business

(iv) Number of shares sold and sales price

Number of shares sold: 81,200,332 shares (all of shares held)

Sales price: A$74 million

Shares after the sale: 0%

(2) LIQUIDATION OF CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARY

The Company agreed on its board of Directors Meeting held on

June 28, 2006 to liquidate its consolidated subsidiary, Daikyo (North

Queensland) Pty. Ltd.

(i) Reason for the liquidation

The reason for the liquidation is to withdraw from overseas

business based on the Company’s Business Revitalization Plan.

(ii) Overview of Daikyo (North Queensland) Pty. Ltd

Common stock: A$12,759,000 (as of March 31, 2006)

Business description: Real estate sales

Real estate management

(iii) Schedule of liquidation

February 2007: Last general meeting by a liquidator

May 2007: Conclusion of liquidation

15 IMPORTANT SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Directors of Daikyo Incorporated

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Daikyo Incorporated and its subsidiaries as of March 31, 2006 and

2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, all expressed

in Japanese Yen. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is

to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Those standards require that we plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating

the overall consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial

position of Daikyo Incorporated and its subsidiaries as of March 31, 2006 and 2005, and the consolidated results of their operations

and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

As described in Note 2-(6), effective for the year ended March 31, 2005, Daikyo Incorporated and its subsidiaries adopted new Japanese

accounting standards for Impairment of fixed assets.

As described in Note 13, effective for the year ended March 31, 2006, Daikyo Incorporated and its consolidated subsidiaries changed

the business segmentation.

As described in Note 15, Daikyo Incorporated agreed on its board held on June 28, 2006 to sell its consolidated subsidiary, Daikyo

Australia Pty. Ltd. and to liquidate its consolidated subsidiary, Daikyo (North Queensland) Pty. Ltd.

The amounts expressed in U.S. dollars, which are provided solely for the convenience of the reader, have been translated on the basis

set forth in note 3 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

ChuoAoyama PricewaterhouseCoopers

Tokyo, Japan

June 28, 2006
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NON-CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
March 31, 2005 and 2006

Supplemental Information

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

ASSETS 2005 2006 2006

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash ¥ 60,596 ¥ 33,714 $ 287,002

Time deposits 950 20,000 170,256

Marketable securities 85 500 4,256

Notes and accounts receivable 2,787 4,225 35,966

Allowance for doubtful accounts (991) (83) (702)

1,796 4,142 35,264

Real estate for sale 30,289 12,485 106,283

Real estate for sale in progress 142,583 114,399 973,858

Real estate for development projects 24,020 53,920 459,010

Cost of construction in progress 22 61 516

Advance payments 1,797 961 8,180

Prepaid expenses and other 17,242 18,400 156,638

Total current assets 279,380 258,582 2,201,263

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, LESS ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 25,301 17,429 148,370

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS:

Investments in and advances to subsidiaries and affiliates 34,146 30,256 257,561

Investment securities 7,761 4,514 38,423

Other investments 1,195 240 2,042

Allowance for doubtful accounts (1,091) (159) (1,353)

Other assets 10,432 10,237 87,152

Total investments and other fixed assets 52,443 45,088 383,825

Total assets ¥357,124 ¥321,099 $2,733,458



— 41 — 

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 2005 2006 2006

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Short-term bank loans ¥ 26,948 ¥ — $ —

Current portion of long-term debt 75,487 26,978 229,658

Notes and accounts payable 78,752 61,185 520,858

Advances received from customers 12,637 21,598 183,858

Accrued expenses 6,790 4,667 39,727

Income taxes payable 302 295 2,510

Other current liabilities 3,789 6,450 54,908

Total current liabilities 204,705 121,173 1,031,519

LONG-TERM DEBT 93,530 117,534 1,000,546

DEPOSITS RECEIVED MAINLY FROM TENANTS 5,715 5,815 49,499

RESERVE FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS 590 801 6,821

OTHER LIABILITIES 1,430 693 5,907

Total liabilities 305,970 246,016 2,094,292

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:

Capital stock,

Common stock,

Authorized: 1,191,000,000 shares at March 31, 2005 and 2006

Preferred stock, 

Authorized:150,000,000 shares at March 31, 2005 and 2006 27,000 27,000 229,845

Additional paid-in capital 121,046 23,157 197,134

Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) (98,908) 24,273 206,635

Net unrealized gains (losses) on other securities 2,063 753 6,412

Treasury stock at cost (47) (100) (860)

Total shareholders’ equity 51,154 75,083 639,166

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ¥357,124 ¥321,099 $2,733,458
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NON-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the years ended March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2004 2005 2006 2006

NET SALES ¥319,831 ¥ 353,338 ¥296,194 $2,521,444

COST OF SALES 272,978 347,423 246,043 2,094,514

Gross profit 46,853 5,915 50,151 426,930

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 31,298 33,322 30,469 259,379

Operating income (loss) 15,555 (27,407) 19,682 167,551

OTHER INCOME (Expenses):

Interest and dividend income 1,196 457 169 1,442

Interest expense (7,701) (7,690) (4,048) (34,459)

Gain on sales of marketable securities and investments in securities 4,182 1,764 3,351 28,523

Gain on sales of investments in subsidiaries and affiliates — 5,488 140 1,193

Impairment loss on fixed assets — (136,209) — —

Gain (loss) on sales of property and equipment (1,893) 15,862 (6,383) (54,338)

Gain on debt-forgiveness — 103,479 — —

Loss on write-down of marketable securities and investments in securities — (18) — —

Loss on write-down of investments in subsidiaries and affiliates (305) (31,011) — —

Loss on financial support to affiliated companies — (11,963) — —

Loss on real estate for development projects (6,115) (2,969) — —

Profit on substitution portion of pension fund — — — —

Other, net 1,162 (9,423) 161 1,371

Income (loss) before income taxes 6,081 (99,640) 13,072 111,283

INCOME TAXES 45 (3) (11,201) (95,352)

Net income (loss) ¥ 6,036 ¥ (99,637) ¥ 24,273 $ 206,635

Yen U.S. dollars

PER COMMON SHARE:

Net income (loss) ¥ 26.13 ¥ (531.15) ¥ 73.82 $ 0.63

Fully diluted net income 5.08 — 33.26 0.28

WEIGHTED-AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES (thousands) 185,111 187,588 320,708
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NON-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2006

Millions of yen

Retained Net unrealized
Common Preferred Additional earnings gains (losses)

stock stock Capital paid-in Voluntary (accumulated on other Treasury
(thousands) (thousands) stock capital reserves deficit) securities stock

BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2004 185,314 150,000 ¥ 65,046 ¥ 30,000 ¥ — ¥ 1,929 ¥ 3,155 ¥ (21)

Net income (loss) — — — — — (99,637) — —

Cash dividends — — — — — (1,200) — —

Stock issued to third parties 133,720 — 11,500 11,500 — — — —

Stock issued to third parties by debt-equity swap — 75,000 15,000 15,000 — — — —

Deduction for reducing accumulated deficit — (75,000) (64,546) 64,546 — — — —

Decrease in net unrealized gains on other securities — — — — — — (1,092) —

Changes in treasury stock — — — — — — — (26)

BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2005 319,034 150,000 ¥ 27,000 ¥ 121,046 ¥ — ¥ (98,908) ¥ 2,063 ¥ (47)

Net income — — — — — 24,273 — —

Increase of stock by a stock swap 8,176 — — 1,019 — — — —

Transfer to retained earnings — — — (64,547) — — — —

Transfer of additional paid-in capital — — — (34,361) — 34,361 — —

Transfer from additional paid-in capital — — — — — 64,547 — —

Decrease in net unrealized gains on other securities — — — — — — (1,310) —

Changes in treasury stock — — — — — — — (53)

BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2006 327,210 150,000 ¥ 27,000 ¥ 23,157 ¥ — ¥ 24,273 ¥ 753 ¥(100)

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Retained Net unrealized
Common Preferred Additional earnings gains (losses)

stock stock Capital paid-in Voluntary (accumulated on other Treasury
(thousands) (thousands) stock capital reserves deficit) securities stock

BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2005 319,034 150,000 $229,845 $1,030,446 $ — $(841,986) $ 17,557 $ (398)

Net income — — — — — 206,635 — —

Increase of stock by a stock swap 8,176 — — 8,674 — — — —

Transfer to retained earnings — — — (549,473) — — — —

Transfer of additional paid-in capital — — — (292,513) — 292,513 — —

Transfer from additional paid-in capital — — — — — 549,473 — —

Decrease in net unrealized gains on other securities — — — — — — (11,145) —

Changes in treasury stock — — — — — — — (462)

BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2006 327,210 150,000 $229,845 $ 197,134 $ — $ 206,635 $ 6,412 $(860)

Number of
shares issued

Number of
shares issued
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CORPORATE  DATA
(As of March 31, 2006)

CORPORATE NAME: DAIKYO INCORPORATED

HEAD OFFICE ADDRESS: Sendagaya No. 21 Daikyo Building, 24-13, Sendagaya 4-chome, Shibuya-ku, Tokyo 151-8506, Japan 

Phone: +81-3-3475-1111

DATE ESTABLISHED: December 11, 1964

BRANCH OFFICES:

HOKKAIDO BRANCH OFFICE Sapporo North Plaza Building, 2-2, Kitaichijo-nishi 4-chome, Chuo-ku, Sapporo City, Hokkaido 060-0001, Japan

Phone: +81-11-221-2322

TOHOKU BRANCH OFFICE Sendai Kowa Building, 4-1, Ichibancho 2-chome, Aoba-ku, Sendai City, Miyagi 980-0811, Japan

Phone: +81-22-262-2171

KITA-KANTO BRANCH OFFICE Omiya Center Building, 9-6, Sakuragicho 1-chome, Omiya-ku, Saitama City, Saitama 330-0854, Japan

+81-48-650-6400

HIGASHI-KANTO BRANCH OFFICE Mori Building, 4-2, Honcho 5-chome, Funabashi City, Chiba 273-0005, Japan

Phone: +81-47-421-1221

TOKYO BRANCH OFFICE Sendagaya No.21 Daikyo Building, 24-13, Sendagaya 4-chome, Shibuya-ku, Tokyo 151-0051, Japan

Phone: +81-3-3475-1131

HIGASHI-TOKYO BRANCH OFFICE No.3 Daikyo Annex Building, 15-5, Sendagaya 4-chome, Shibuya-ku, Tokyo 151-8546, Japan

Phone: +81-3-3475-2600

YOKOHAMA BRANCH OFFICE TS Plaza Building, 23-2, Tsuruyacho 2-chome, Kanagawa-ku, Yokohama City, Kanagawa 221-0835, Japan

Phone: +81-45-312-3321

NAGOYA BRANCH OFFICE Daikyo Hisaya Building, 19-12, Marunouchi 3-chome, Naka-ku, Nagoya City, Aichi 460-0002, Japan

Phone: +81-52-972-6111

OSAKA BRANCH OFFICE Shin Fujita Building, 4-27, Dojima 2-chome, Kita-ku, Osaka City, Osaka 530-0003, Japan

Phone: +81-6-6453-2335

HIROSHIMA BRANCH OFFICE Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Hiroshima Noboricho Building, 13-11, Noboricho, Naka-ku, Hiroshima City,

Hiroshima 730-0016, Japan

Phone: +81-82-211-0121

KYUSYU BRANCH OFFICE Hakata No.15 Daikyo Building, 30-15, Hakataekimae 3-chome, Hakata-ku, Fukuoka City, Fukuoka 812-0011, Japan

Phone: +81-92-481-8866

CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES:

CAPITAL STOCK
JAPAN LOCATION (Millions of yen) MAIN BUSINESS

FUSO LEXEL INCORPORATED Tokyo ¥4,662 Real estate sales; contract work

DAIKYO KANRI INCORPORATED Tokyo ¥1,237 Real estate management

DAIKYO JYUTAKU RYUTSU INCORPORATED Tokyo ¥1,413 Real estate brokerage

OKINAWA DAIKYO INCORPORATED Okinawa ¥100 Real estate sales

DAIKYO LIFE INCORPORATED Tokyo ¥20 Real estate management

CAPITAL STOCK
OVERSEAS (As of December 31, 2005) LOCATION (Thousands of Australian dollars) MAIN BUSINESS

DAIKYO AUSTRALIA PTY. LTD. Gold Coast, Australia A$81,200 Real estate management

DAIKYO (NORTH QUEENSLAND) PTY. LTD. Cairns, Australia A$12,759 Real estate sales
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INVESTOR INFORMATION
(As of March 31, 2006)

TOTAL NUMBER OF SHARES ISSUED:
Common stock 327,210,258

Preferred stock 150,000,000

NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS: 21,098

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING:
Tokyo Stock Exchange: First Section (code: 8840)

Osaka Securities Exchange: First Section (code: 8840)

TRANSFER AGENCY OF COMMON STOCK: Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation

MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS:

DISTRIBUTION OF SHARES BY TYPE OF SHAREHOLDER:

NAME Number of shares (1,000 shares) Percentage of voting rights (%)

ORIX Corporation 138,721 41.4%

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. 9,090 2.7

The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 8,971 2.7

Japan Securities Finance Co., Ltd. 7,036 2.1

Aioi Insurance Co., Ltd. 6,967 2.1

Morgan Stanley and Co. International Limited 6,099 1.8

Bank of New York GCM Client Accounts EISG 5,036 1.5

Daikyo Business Partners Shareholding Association 4,762 1.4

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. 4,523 1.4

JP Morgan Chase CREF Jasdec Lending Account 4,084 1.2

Japanese financial
institutions 16.3%

Japanese securities
companies   2.4%

 

Other Japanese corporations 46.5%

Foreign institutions and
individuals 12.2%

Japanese individuals and
others 22.6%
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